
AGENDA 

1) Approval of Minutes from the October 30, 2023 Finance Committee Meeting

2) First Quarter 2024 Financial Review

3) Review Finance Committee Charter (attached)

4) Investment Policy Review (attached)

5) Enter Executive Session1

6) Exit Executive Session

7) Next Meeting:  July 19, 2024
____________________________

1 Only if necessary (and if approved by a majority vote of the Commission), to discuss 

a. matters which will imperil the public safety if disclosed;

b. any matter which may disclose the identity of a law enforcement agent or informer;

c. information relating to current or future investigation or prosecution of a criminal offense which would

imperil effective law enforcement if disclosed;

d. discussions regarding proposed, pending or current litigation;

e. collective negotiations pursuant to article fourteen of the civil service law;

f. the medical, financial, credit or employment history of a particular person or corporation, or matters

leading to the appointment, employment, promotion, demotion, discipline, suspension, dismissal or

removal of a particular person or corporation;

g. the preparation, grading or administration of examinations; and

h. the proposed acquisition, sale or lease of real property or the proposed acquisition of securities, or sale or

exchange of securities held by such public body, but only when publicity would substantially affect the

value thereof.

ALBANY PORT DISTRICT COMMISSION 

FINANCE COMMITTEE 
April 24, 2024 

12:00 P.M. 



Chairman Coffey called the meeting to order.  In attendance were Commissioners, Steffens, 

Cinquanti, Abriel and Tagliento.  Also present were CEO Hendrick, General Counsel Jordan, CCO 

Daly, CFO Stuto, DSI Schneidawin, DEA Vavura, SCM Yagan, Director of Security Stock and 

Administrative Assistant DiLillo.  

Chairman Coffey introduced the minutes of the September 27, 2023 meeting.  No changes were 

made to the minutes.  Chairman Coffey called for a motion to approve the minutes.  A motion was 

made by Commissioner Tagliento and seconded by Commissioner Abriel and passed unanimously. 

FINANCIAL REVIEW 

CFO Stuto reviewed with the Committee the 2023 forecast to budget as of  September 30, 2023.  

She reported a $36,000 decrease in the operating revenue forecast  from last month.  Operating 

expenses projection has increased for the year by $140,000.  This increase projection is spread 

across multiple expenses including insurance, consultant fees and equipment repairs. Net 

depreciation and other expenses has a $6,000. change with an overall change of  $24,000 in change 

in net position. 

PROPOSED 2024 BUDGET 

CFO Stuto presented the  proposed 2024 Budget and Budget Goals. She reported  that the proposed 

2024 Budget had been updated based on discussions and recommendations of the Finance 

Committee.  Some discussion took place relating to the budget goals.  Commissioner Coffey asked 

for a motion to accept the 2024 proposed budget as presented and to forward it to the Board for 

approval.  A motion was made by Commissioner Tagliento, seconded by Commissioner Abriel 

and passed unanimously. 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

There were no items for discussion in Executive Session. 

ALBANY PORT DISTRICT COMMISSION 

MINUTES OF FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 

 October 30, 2023



APDC FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING                                                                                 October 30, 2023 
  

2 
 

 

 

OTHER BUSINESS 

 

No other business for discussion. 

 

Chairman Coffey asked for a motion to adjourn the meeting.  A motion was made by 

Commissioner  Cinquanti, seconded by Commissioner Abriel and passed unanimously. The 

meeting was adjourned. 

 



1  

ALBANY PORT DISTRICT COMMISSION COMMITTEE CHARTER 
 
 

Pursuant to the Public Authorities Law, the Albany Port District Commission (the “Port”) establishes 
board committees with responsibilities pursuant to this written charter. 

 
PURPOSE 

 

The purpose of this Committee Charter, and the resulting Committees, are to help improve 
oversight, accountability, and transparency at the Port, thereby strengthening public confidence in 
its operations. 

 
   STRUCTURE/COMMITTEES 

 

The Port shall have a Governance Committee, Finance Committee and an Audit 
Committee. 

 
I. The Finance Committee 

 
A. Purpose. 

 

1. The purpose of the Finance Committee shall be to (1) ensure the financial 
health of the Port (2) ensure that Port assets are protected and resources 
are used appropriately and (3) assist the Board in understanding the Port’s 
financial condition. 

 
B. Composition. 

 
1. The Committee will consist of a minimum of three members, one of 

whom will be the Committee Chairperson. The Committee members and 
Chairperson will be designated by the Chairperson of the Port Board. A 
majority of the Committee members shall be “independent” as defined in 
section 2825 of the Public Authorities Law. 

2. In addition to the members, the Chairperson of the Port Board shall 
be a non-voting member of the Committee. 

3. Committee members shall serve annual terms and can be  
reappointed or replaced at the end of their term or in other instances, 
as needed. 

 
C. Meetings. 

 
1. The Committee will meet at least four times a year. All Committee members 

are expected to attend each meeting, in person or via telephone or 
videoconference 

2. A majority of voting Committee members must attend in order to 
constitute a quorum and to hold a valid meeting. 

 



2  

D. Authority. 
 

1. The Committee has the authority to seek any information it requires from 
Port staff, outside auditors, or any other individual/entity required, all of 
whom are directed by the Board to cooperate with the Committee’s 
requests. 

2. The Committee has the authority to meet with the Port’s staff, independent 
auditors or outside counsel, as necessary. 

3. The Board shall ensure that the audit committee has sufficient resources to 
carry out its duties. 

 
 

E. Responsibilities. 
 

1. The Committee shall be primarily responsible for: 
 

a. In conjunction with the Audit Committee, review and recommend 
new or revised financial policies to the Board for approval; 

b. Ensuring that timely and accurate financial data is 
presented to the Board; 

c. Review and recommend an annual operating budget for Board 
approval; 

d. Review the financial performance of APDC against budget 
projections for the period to-date; 

e. Review proposals for the issuance of debt by the Port and make 
recommendations to the Board; 

f. Make recommendations to the Board concerning the level of debt 
and nature of debt issued by the APDC; 

g. Develop the investment policy for the Port and review this policy 
annually; 

h. As necessary, recommend Investment Policy changes to the Board 
for approval; 

i. Make recommendations concerning the appointment of bond 
counsel, investment managers and underwriting firms used by the 
APDC and to oversee such individual’s/entity’s work; 

j. Provide the Board with recommendations concerning the 
hiring/retention of the investment manager; 

k. Reviewing the adequacy of the Committee charter 
annually; and 

l. Performing other activities related to this charter as 
requested by the Board. 

 
 
 
 
         



 

 

1 

GUIDELINES FOR INVESTMENTS 

ALBANY PORT DISTRICT COMMISSION 

 
 

These guidelines detail the operative policy regarding the investing, monitoring and reporting 

of funds of the Albany Port District Commission (“APDC”). 

 

1)  Purpose. 

 

These investment guidelines are intended to: 

 

a) Establish a system whereby current funds on hand, in excess of immediate needs, 

are invested to assure that such investment assets are adequately safeguarded and 

collateralized. 

 

b) Assure that such investments are adequately liquid to meet the needs of the 

APDC; 

 

c) Assure that an adequate system of internal control is maintained; and 

 

d) Assure that such investments produce a reasonable rate of return. 

 

The primary objective is protection of principal. 

 

2)   Authorization and Management. 

 

The Board Members of the APDC have delegated the authorization to make 

investment decisions to the Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”) and/or Chief Financial 

Officer (“CFO”).  These persons are to make certain that all decisions conform to: 

 

a) Chapter 192 of the Laws of 1925, State of New York, as amended (also known as 

the APDC’s enabling legislation); 

 

b)  Section 2925 of the Public Authorities Law. 

 

The CEO and/or CFO are authorized to deposit all funds received by the APDC in 

excess of those needed for on-going operations consistent with these guidelines.  

Additionally, pursuant to a recommendation by the CEO or CFO, a professional 

investment advisor (“Advisor”) shall be retained to assist the APDC’s implementation 

of this Policy and the APDC may grant the advisor discretion to execute transactions 

within the context of this Policy. The advisor will be expected to act as a fiduciary at 

all times in the best interest of the APDC. 

 

 

 

 



 

 

2 

 

3)  Types of Investments and Contracts. 

 

The approved types of investments are as follows: 

 

a)  Securities issued by and guaranteed by the U.S. Government or one of its 

agencies.  No collateral is required for this type of investment.  

 

b) Certificates of Deposit collateralized or fully insured by the Federal Deposit 

Insurance Corporation as to principal and expected interest. 

 

c) Deposits in “Money Market Type” accounts of banks doing business in New York 

that are collateralized or fully insured by the FDIC as to principal and expected 

interest. 

 

d) Obligations of New York State or obligations in which the principal and interest 

are guaranteed by New York State.  No collateral is required for this type of 

investment. 

 

Since it is not a regular business practice for a written contract with respect to these 

types of investments, no written contract is required.  The operating practices herein 

shall govern. 

 

e) In no event will the final maturity of any purchased security exceed five years 

unless the security has an adjustable coupon rate.  In this event, the coupon rate 

must adjust no less frequently than every three months, must be positively 

correlated with market interest rates and possess a final maturity of seven years 

or less.  The liquidity/availability of funds must always be considered when 

investing for any term of greater than one year. 

 

4)   Operating Procedures. 

 

a) Approvals:  The APDC requires that the CEO or CFO approve all investment 

transactions before they are executed.  The Advisor will be consulted for 

appropriate investment recommendations to the CEO or CFO.  The Board will be 

informed of all such investment transactions and review the APDC’s portfolio 

during the CFO’s report detailed in Section 7(a) of this Policy. 

 

b) Collateral Custody:  The Custodian of all collateral involved in any investment 

transaction must be either the APDC or third party custodian acceptable to the 

APDC.  If at any time the required collateral does not equal the value of the 

investment, the APDC shall inform the third party custodian of additional 

collateral required.  If additional collateral is not added immediately by the third 

party custodian involved, the APDC shall demand the return of the amount 

invested.  Any custodian or trustee of securities in any transaction of which the 



 

 

3 

APDC is a principal may not relinquish control over such securities without 

written consent of the APDC and the bank. 

 

c) The APDC requires that any financial institution with which it makes an 

investment either be the principal in regard to the transaction, or if the financial 

institution is serving as a placement agent, such information must be disclosed to 

the APDC. 

 

d) In addition to the normal entries in cash receipts, cash disbursements and general 

ledger regarding investments, the CFO (and/or the Advisor retained by the APDC) 

will maintain a schedule for each financial institution with which the APDC 

makes investments showing: 

  1. Date of transaction; 

  2. Security; 

  3. Fund for which the investment is held; 

  4. Location where investment is kept; 

  5. Date of Disposition and amount realized; 

  6. Market Value/Custodian of Collateral (if required); 

  7. Interest rate; and 

  8. Maturity date of the investment. 

 

 The CFO shall receive reports monthly from any custodian/bank holding APDC 

investments.  The CFO will review such reports monthly and verify the principal 

amount and market values of all investments and collateral. 

 

e) Prior to making an investment, the APDC (or investment advisor) will review 

competitive investment offerings from brokers/banks in order to insure that the 

APDC receives a competitive value.  The Certificate of Deposit will be held by 

the APDC’s Custodian.  If there is collateral involved, the APDC will 

immediately contact the designated custodian or trustee of the collateral and 

receive from custodian a written instrument requiring the APDC’s agreement 

before custody may be relinquished. 

 

f) The APDC requires the custodian to send verification of funds/securities held for 

the APDC whenever requested to do so by the APDC. 

 

5) Collateralization. 

 

a) The collateral for Certificate of Deposit or Money Market Fund deposits, is 

limited to “Investment Grade” obligations.  “Investment Grade” obligations are 

direct obligations of the United States or New York State Government or 

obligations the principal and interest of which are guaranteed by the United States, 

one of its agencies or New York State Government. 

        

b) Whenever investments require collateralization, such investments must be 

collateralized by “Investment Grade” obligations as defined in item a) above. 



 

 

4 

 

6) Modifications. 

 

a) The APDC will review these guidelines annually in conjunction with the annual 

independent audit or at any time for statutory, regulatory, or policy modifications 

and may be resolution, modify these procedures at any time. 

 

7) Reports and Audits. 

 

The following reports and audits shall be prepared in connection with the APDC’s 

Investment program. 

 

a) The CFO shall provide the Board semi-annual reports regarding any new 

investments, the inventory of existing investments, and the selection of 

investment bankers, brokers, agents, dealers or auditors.  Additionally, any 

retained investment advisor will meet with the APDC Board at least annually to 

discuss the portfolio and any questions of the APDC Board. 

 

b) Annual Investment Report. The CFO shall prepare and submit an annual 

investment report to the Board after the close of each fiscal year of the APDC.  

Upon Board approval, the report shall be filed with the Division of the Budget, 

Senate Finance Committee, Assembly Ways and Means Committee, and the New 

York State Comptroller.  Such report shall include the following: 

  

1. The investment Guidelines required by Section 2925(3) of the Public 

Authorities Law and any amendments to such guidelines since the last 

investment report; 

2. An explanation of the Investment Guidelines and Amendments; 

3. The results of the Annual Investment Audit described below; 

4. The investment income results of the APDC; and 

5. A list of the total fees, commissions or other charges paid for APDC 

investment associated services by the APDC since the date of the last 

investment report. 

 

c) Annual Investment Audit.  Each year, the APDC shall cause its independent 

auditors to conduct an audit (the “Annual Investment Audit”) regarding the 

APDC’s investments.  The Annual Investment Audit: 

 

1. Shall determine whether the APDC complies with its own 

investment policies; investment assets are adequately safeguarded 

given the statutory investment mandates; adequate accounts and 

records are maintained which accurately reflect all transactions 

and report on the disposition of the APDC’s assets; and a system 

of adequate internal controls is maintained. 

 



 

 

5 

2. Shall determine whether the APDC has complied with the 

applicable laws, regulations, guidelines and public authority 

directives as may be issued and 

3. Should be designed to the extent practical to satisfy both the 

common interest of the APDC and the public officials accountable 

to others. 

 

d) Annual Investment Audit Report.  The results of the Annual Investment Audit 

Report shall be set forth in a report (the “Annual Investment Audit Report”) which 

shall include: 

 

   1. A description of the scope and objectives of the audit; 

2. A statement that the audit was made in accordance with generally 

accepted government auditing standards; 

3. A description of any material weaknesses found in the internal 

controls; 

4. A description of all non-compliance with the APDC’s Investment 

Guidelines as well as applicable laws, regulations, guidelines and 

public authority directives; 

5. A statement of positive assurance of compliance on the items 

tested and negative assurance on those items not tested; 

6. A statement on any other material deficiency or finding identified 

during the audit not covered in 5 above; and 

7. Recommendations, if any, with respect to amendment of the 

APDC Investment Guidelines. 

 

The Annual Investment Audit Report shall be filed within ninety (90) days after the close of the 

APDC’s fiscal year with the New York State Authorities Budget Office. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

          4-27-22 revised 




